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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Streef, Hamilion HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

e foundation piling and site invesfigation
*  property development

O property investment and management

The holding company of the Company is Tides Holdings Il ltd., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands {“BVI) and ultimately
controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P., which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. Pursuant fo a joint announcement made by the
Company and HNA Finance | Co., lid. ("HNA Finance I’) dated 19
April 2016 {'Joint Announcement”), Tides Holdings II Ltd. conditionally
agreed fo sell its 66% inferest in the issued shares of the Company to
HNA Finance |. Further detfails of this event are set out in note 43(a) to
the financial stafements.
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ARAEEMNBRARINFENT
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Name

FAWE(BE)BRAT
(IRABE(FE)])

Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited
["TFHK")

RAMETRR(FE)ERAA
(Hrz1)

Tysan Conractors (Hong Kong| Limited
fnofe 1)

FARE(RM)ERAR (M2 ])
Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited
fnofe 1)

FAMETRBRRRA(ME 1 K2)

Tysan Foundation limited frofes 7 and 2)

FRWEL NTRARDAME])
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical Limited
[nofe 1)
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Information about subsidiaries

Bilhye
B3
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

B
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

AP

Macau

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BETRG,/
HREMER
Issued share/
paid-up
registered capital

ERR 10078
Ordinary HK$100

TR 2B T
Ordinary HK$2

AR 25,0008
Ordinary MOP25,000

i@k 141,000,00087T
Ordinary HK$141,000,000
EAEAR 3,000,000 7T
DeferredHK$3,000,000

LBk 10,000,00087
Ordinary HK$10,000,000

NGl
ZBEEDL
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of equity

aftributable to
the Company

FREH

Principal activities

“E-NE —EB-3fF

2016

60

60

60

60

60

2015

60 REER
Investment

holding

60 ERERUR
BRAtFR A R B R
Project

management

and provision

of consuliancy

and management

services

60 HAEITHE

Foundation
piling

60 HEITER
HEHE

Foundation

piling and site
investigation

60 EATER
EHE

Foundation

piling and site
investigation
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1. RAREEERGE) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEZMBRRINFENT : () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Contd)
BiAye
afMkEF LR BRITRE/ NG )3
Place of BREMER ZREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ ~ Percentage of equity

£8 registration paid-up attributable to ITEEH
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies

2016 2015

RAUNBEBRDA(MZ 1 K2) ) L&A 10,00047T 60 60 KREE

Tysan Machinery Hire limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Machinery hiring
(nofes I and 2) TR 200,000 T
Deferred HK$200,000

FEMMIRBRARMEZ]) B8 TEik24,480,000%7T 100 100 HRBEREE

Proficiency Equipment Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary HK$24,480,000 Machinery

hiring and

frading

FETREEERARME ) 6 TER2AT 100 100 RETERRER

Proficiency Engineering Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 K E

Provision of

engineering

services and

machinery hiring

BIRBRARMZ]) BE LTER2ET 100 100 KHBERER

Lion Bright Limited fnofe 1/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Machinery

hiring and

frading

ERBBRRR ML) R LEAR 25 000RM T 100 100 R TI2MRA%

Mac Proficiency limited frofe 7/ Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 LkmEE

Provision of

engineering

services and
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RAREBER (F) le
BB 1A EH ()
ARBAEEMNBRRINFENT : (&)
(Contd]
Bl hye
afkEF LR BRIRG/
Place of HREMER
incorporation/ Issued share/
A registration paid-up
Name and business registered capital

FRERERRAR(M:Z2) &E
Tysan Management Limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong
SRARAA &
Great Unison Limited Hong Kong
FAREERBRAA &
Tysan Invesiment Limited Hong Kong
FAREBRAA &b
Tysan Construction Company limited Hong Kong
Cotioniree Pacific Limited* RBRAEE
BVI
Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited* (422 1) BRE
fnote 1) Bermuda
FRAMEXRREBRLA &
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong
& Investment limited
EGREBRRARM:Z]) &b
Sure Faith Investment Limited /nofe 7/ Hong Kong

LRI 16,720,850 7T
Ordinary HK$ 16,720,850
B 2B T

Deferred HK$2

LRI AT

Ordinary HK$1

TR 2T
Ordinary HK$2

LR 2ET
Ordinary HK$2

TR BT
Ordinary HK$1

EEATO0.1 787
Ordinary HK$0.1

TR 2T
Ordinary HK$2

EER2BT
Ordinary HK$2

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

NG
ZBEEDL
Percentage of equity
atiributable to TEEH
the Company Principal activities
“B-~F ZF-0F
2016 2015
100 100 txER
Corporate
management
100 100 TPRRBE
Corporate
financing
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 ESERES
Property
holding
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1. RAREEERGE) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEZMBRRINFENT : () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
BV
AR EXLH ERTRG,/ ERAEE
Place of BEEMER ZREEDL
incorporation/ Issued share/  Percentage of equity
5 registration paid-up attributable to TEEH
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies
-5 —ZT-1F
2016 2015
EREHWERRARMZ ) BB LER2BT 100 100 RERR
Duncan Properties Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
Dragonhill Limited (7% 7) BiE LEREL 100 100 REER
fnoe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
BEERARRRAMZ ) BiE LR 10087 100 100 RERR
CG [HY) Intemational Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Investment
holding
LEEERREER RS TE/ SRR 5,000,000%7 - 100 VESIE
BRAR( EEER ) PRC/ US$5,000,000 Property
(138 10) Mainland China invesiment
Shanghai China Garden Infemational
Real Estate Development & Management
Company Limited ("Shanghai China
Garden")* fnotes 1, 3 and 10)
lronwood Pacific Limited* (7% 7) SBRAHS L@k 100%T 100 100 RERR
fnote ]) BV Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
BRREERAR(ERRE ) &R EER2AT - 100 WERE
(Bt 1 %9) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property
Hiat Investment Limited |"Hiat Investment”)* investment
fnotes 1 and 9)
Beneficial Enterprises Limited* (z# 1) RBRAES LER100%T 100 100 RARR
fnofe 1) BV Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
BRATRERARME]) &b EBR2ET 100 100 RARR
Fund House Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment
holding
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REAIREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contd)

BB 2 A EH ()
ARREEMBARNFHBNT : (£)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]
Bl Ve
afkEF LR BRfTRG/ NG
Place of HREMER ZREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/  Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEEH
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
“B-~F ZF-0F
2016 2015
BEMEER (L) ARAF i,/ 500,000%7t 100 100 NEER
(W 1R3) HE R US$500,000 Property
Duncan Property Management [Shanghail PRC/ management
Company Limited* fnofes 1 and 3/ Mainland China
Allbright Investment Limited* (#7z# 1) RBRAES @R 100 100 100 RERR
fnote ]) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
AABRERRRAMZ ) & EER2ET 100 100 RERR
Red Shine Invesiment Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
Federated Resources Limited* (#s# 1) RBRAES LER100ET 100 100 RERR
fnote ]) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
ENBARRA L] & EER2ET 100 100 RERR
Carriway Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
HEREEERHESRERRR i,/ AR 200,0007 100 100 VESS
(ffE] ~ 3 5k6) B A RMB200,000 Property
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property PRC/ consulfing
Consulling Company Limited* Mainland China

fnotes 1, 3, 5 and 6)
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1. RAREEERGE) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEZMBRRINFENT : () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Contd)
BiAye
afMkEF LR BRITRE/ NG )3
Place of BREMER ZREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ ~ Percentage of equity

£8 registration paid-up attributable to ITEEH
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies

2016 2015

REREERDRAMT ) BB EER2ET 100 100 RERRIE R4

Great Regent Invesiments Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 HE R RS

Investment holding

and provision of

sales and

markefing services

ZARWE (L&) FRAR i,/ 1,000,000 7T 100 100 NEER

Bzl - 4k7) hE R US$1,000,000 Property

Tysan land (Shanghai) Limited * PRC/ development
fnotes 1, 4 and /) Mainland China

BRBERAT(ME 1) B LR 10087 100 100 RERRA A

Great Prosper Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 HEREHRE

Investment holding

and provision of

sales and

marketing services

FRARHERE(RE)RRAR i,/ 15,500,000% 7T 100 100 MERER

(FiE 1R 3) B A US$15,500,000 Property

Tysan Property Development (Tianjin| PRC/ development
Company Limited*/nofes 7 and 3) Mainland China

REBRRA(MZ 1) &R LR 10,0007% 7T 100 100 RERR

Sparkle Key Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary Investment

HK$10,000 holding

ZAFNECEG)BRAA* hE/ 108,300,000% 7T 100 100 NERER

(Wit 1 3R8) hElR, US$108,300,000 Property

Tysan Land (Shenyang) Limited* PRC/ development
fnotes 1, 3 and 8) Mainland China
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31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Nofes:

1.

2.

Held through subsidiaries.

The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year
during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
exceeds HK$ 1 billion|, no rights fo vote at general meetings, no rights to
receive any surplus on a return of capital on a windingup (other than the
amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).

These entities are registered as whollyforeign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

This entity is registered as an Sinoforeign joint venture under the PRC
low.

The name of this enfity was changed from “Shanghai Changning Duncan
Property Development Company Llimited” to “Shanghai Changning
Duncan Property Consulting Company Limited" with effect from 10 August
2015.

The registered capital of this entity decreased from US$10,000,000 to
RMB200,000 in September 2015.

The registered capital of this entity decreased from US$20,500,000 to
US$1,000,000 in July 2015

In April 2015, the increase of registered capital of this entity from
US$58,300,000 to US$108,300,000 was approved by the relevant

govemment authority and the amount was paid in November 2015.

On 11 December 2015, the Group disposed of ifs entire inferests in Hiat
Investment. Further defails of the disposal are set out in note 39a) o the
financial statements.

On 1 February 2016, the Group disposed of its entire interests in
Shanghai China Garden. Further defails of the disposal are set out in
note 39(b) to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ermst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Emst & Young
global network.

£ 2015/2016
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assefs of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and
all values are rounded fo the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the
"Group'| for the year ended 31 March 2016. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from ifs involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee |i.e.,
exisfing rights that give the Group the current ability fo direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the confractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confractual arrangements; and

[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consisfent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains confrol, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
atiributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company and to the
non-confrolling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i] the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, i) the carying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises [i] the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

£ 2015/2016
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20102012 Cycle

Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current
financial year. The main impact fo the financial stafements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the financial
statements.



[ ]
R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

2.3 CHEMEBREMZEBUBRE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
Z£8| FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AEBHARTHHHRRERAUATER
B RER AT R ER] BB R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HAER o

BRI HRE BETA? HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
ZRIE Q5

BANBREER REEZRERE Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
FI10HRREE RElgEE and HKAS 28 (2011} between an Investor
SEERIE 28 57 PEZREZ and its Associate
(ZF—%F) BEHE or Joint Venture’
ZIEET HEES

BEVBMEELN REFE: Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
F10REER Vi diin=yd=l HKFRS 12 and the Consolidation Exception’
B TR EZER ZBIMER ! HKAS 28 (2011)
FBI2HRRES
SETERIE 28 97
(ZF——%F)
ZIEET

BAMBRELEN UEHEKE Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
F£11R2ER] B &ih%! of Inferests in Joint Operations'

BERNBRS EHELKE HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
RIS 1457

BRI HRE EFE#Z W2 HKFRS 15 Revenuve from Contracts
ZEBRIZE 155 with Customers?

BRI HRE HE? HKFRS 16 leases®

HERIE 1657

4 2015/2016
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
Amendments fo HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number
20122014 Cycle of HKFRSs!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2019

4 Effective for an enfity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or affer 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

No mandatory effective date is defermined but is available for early
adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration fo which an
entity expecs to be enfifled in exchange for transferring goods or
services fo a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also infroduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of tofal revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs.

Amendments to HKAS 1

the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

include narrow-focus improvements in respect of

(i) that specific line ifems in the statement of profit or loss and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entifies have flexibility as to the order in which they present
the notes to financial statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must
be presented in aggregate in a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when
additional subfofals are presented in the statement of financial position
and the stafement of profit or loss. The Group expects fo adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2016. The amendments are not expected fo

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term inferest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's inferests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
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income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and ifs associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
fransferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any refained investment at ifs fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures its invesiment properties and derivative financial
instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid fo fransfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the fransaction fo sell the asset or fransfer the liability
fakes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that markef participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a nondinancial asset fakes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in ifs highest and besf use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—R"E=A=1+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement [Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2 - based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

level 3 —based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required [other than investment properties,
properties under development, properties held for sale, inventories,
consfruction contract assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the assef's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an individual
asset, unless the assef does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
fo which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific fo the assef. An impairment loss is charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense cafegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [nef of any depreciation/
amortisation] had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 FEESTHEERBEE) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)
BEA L Related parties
ETIERT - -7 B RARE A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:
BzREAL
(o) ZAR—BALTHZALZEE [a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
HZAL and that person
(i) s KRR HIAEE [l  has control or joint control over the Group;
i) HAREEBEATE 5 (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
i) BAKREHIANEEEQF (i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
ZETBRERABHED—F Group or of a parent of the Group;
KB
x or
b &7 ARMNE THIER—EGEEZ (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
R applies:

BAKEBR % i} the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

R
N
=
il
£
ﬂ‘

i) —EBRARZ—EEB (‘Jij— (i) one entily is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
ERZBRE WER (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
[/ R ED\T)ZH#%A entity);
ARARERE

il ZEREAEERFR-—% (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
=hZaErE: party;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Contd

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

one entity is a joint venture of a

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related fo the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over
the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel

the entity):; and

of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or fo the parent of the Group.
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2.4 FESFTBRBIE(E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets fo its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after ifems of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged fo the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are safisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capifalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assefs with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under finance lease Over the lease ferms

Buildings 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 33V, %
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

10% - 33V, %

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
inifially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of invesiment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the sfatement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.

For a fransfer from inventories fo investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are sfated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other cosfs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are intended for sale and are expected fo be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current asses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs aftributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.

leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, fo
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a consfant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the stafement of
profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms.

Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straightline basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assefs are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
forsale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assefs
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
cosfs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits fo purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective

hedging insfruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position af fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

£ 2015/2016

99



[ )
.'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

100

2.4 FESFTBRBIE(E)

RERAMEHEE (E)

BAVEMABSEZEREE(E)

NSRBI TE AE D FEF A RS
LERMEERNSERAMAEERS
BB GRS 30A MELERIETE °

WEANZ AR ET A2 R
RARLIFREANEDERREAR
R B R TR A TERA
HEFE - EAOZBARTETAD
AT BT 074 T AL HATEA
B - ZEMARDTE T AN EATES

B MAVEZEPHNEDERHER -
ARGFEMEDMERSNBA TR

REREAEALY AEBAEER
AFEHAREBRENSR  HRE
SELCAE

ERREWRE

ERREYRFETIEE KA EENKE
BmAEARM SR LBREHITLE
BEE - RPHERR  ZFEERR
DA BN 30 922 35 X ZAS 0 ARl (B 8%
AR - SHEBHKAR - BE B
RELETEILE BEREE
RMZEREDNEHLKAK - BEF
KEHEN B R AR E A R 2z
o REELNBRERGER CHMHH
X ARER, °

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—R"E=A=1+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related 1o those of the host confracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the ferms
of the confract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.



2.4 FESTBRBER(E)

RERAMEHMEE (&)

AfHESRRE

AL ESBIRERIE LMK ER
HFETESREE - BIRRHEES - 71
FEERBRAFEF ARSNBRARE
DEAAHEE -

NipfER % I ESBRENRF
EFERETE  RERBEREMLEE
PR RAHOAEREERFE B
BRITERRE (Rt BRI E
HRERR/EMPA)REEREDH
E(RtRaEBERAAHIERES
BREEEN D BERSROEMKEH
EBERIBL - BAEARLESRIRER
R ERBRBARINBRR2ZRA
FSWARBRBBA  RIETXETES
ATBCE R [ s R IR AP R o R e
RRBEMEA -

ERLTBRARENRFEAN )R
FEAEMGTHENSECHZIREMNS
BEAY (b LA BEASER A
REAR T EIL ARG A FEME
ER SRR AERE UGB
RER BRI o

R B AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—X~¥=A=1+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Contd

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are nonderivative financial assets
in unlisted equity invesiments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or unfil the investment is determined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends eamed
whilst holding the available-forsale financial invesiments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies sef out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that invesiment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in esfimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Availablefor-sale financial investments (Cont'd)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-
forsale financial assefs in the near ferm are still appropriate. VWhen, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable to frade these financial assets
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assefs if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial assef reclassified from the available-forsale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the invesiment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified o the statement of profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assefs that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted af the financial assef's original effective interest rate |i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rafe of inferest used fo discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
fogether with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been fransferred fo the Group.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusfing the allowance account. If a write-
off is lafer recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For availableforsale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost [nef of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulafive loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

"

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised |i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation fo pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the Group has fransferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has enfered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group confinues to recognise the fransferred asset fo the extent of the
Group's confinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the assef and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

Al financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly affributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and refention payables,
inerestbearing bank borrowings and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After inifial recognition, inferestbearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured ot amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rafe amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe amortisation is included
in finance costs in the sfatement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities (Contd)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right fo offsef the recognised amounts and there is an
infention fo settle on a net basis, or fo realise the assefs and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.
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(Contd)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, to hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value s
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

*  Where the Group expecis to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current [or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

e Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
confract.

*  Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are seporoted info current portions and non-current

portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
of the

proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by
fofal cost of the

the proportion of costs incurred fo date to the esfimated

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a contract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract cosfs incurred to dafe plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a contract customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are nof resfricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance costs in the stafement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax relating fo
items recognised outside stafement of profit or loss is recognised, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current fox assefs and liabiliies are measured af the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorities, based on fax
rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all tfemporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

®  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the femporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the tfemporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

£ 2015/2016
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax [Cont'd)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused fax losses can be utilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax assef relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, af the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset o be ufilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised o the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
faxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists 1o set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

[c]

(d)

(e)

(9)

From foundation piling, site investigation and electrical and
mechanical ("E&M”) engineering contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properies held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been

fransferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rafe that exactly discounts the esfimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

Dividend income

When shareholder’s right to receive payment has been

established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
insiruments {“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-sefiled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-setiled fransactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, fogether with a corresponding increase in equily, over the
period in which the performance and/or service condifions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-sefled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
fo which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best esfimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit fo the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as af the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not faken into
account when defermining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions aftached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered fo be non-vesting
condifions. Non-vesfing conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead fo an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is
recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condifion,
the transactions are freated as vesfing imespective of whether the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-seffled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial o the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefiled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it had
vesfted on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonwesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are freated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and ufilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave eamed during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund’)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
relirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
parficipated in an opproved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
confributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo parficipate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the sfatement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capifalised.
All other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial stafements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective funcfional currency rates prevailing af the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are franslated af the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling af the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of hisforical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates af the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured af fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

The functional currencies of cerfain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars af the exchange rates prevailing af the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relafing fo that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated sfatement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade and retention receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and retention receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis
of frade and refention receivables and on management's judgement.
Significant judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection hisfory of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were fo deteriorate, resulfing in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional provisions may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual confract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of complefion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers af the
end of the reporting period. These estimates are based on acfual cost
incurred over the total budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the acfivity is completed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both confract revenue and confract costs in
the budget prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses.

Estimation of fotal budgeted costs and cost fo completion for
construction works

Total budgeted costs for consfruction works comprise (i direct
material costs and direct labour, (i) costs of subcontracting, and {iii)
an appropriation of variable and fixed construction and services
overheads. In esfimating the tofal budgeted costs for construction
works, management makes reference to information such as (i) current
offers from subcontractors and suppliers, (i) recent offers agreed with
subcontractors and suppliers, and [iii) professional esfimates on material
costs, labour costs and other costs.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for fax and the fiming of payment of the related taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax defermination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes ("LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 0% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business faxes and all property development
expenditures. The fax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not yet finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
fax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which such determination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Operating segments are reported
in @ manner consistent with internal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

[a) the foundation piling segment (including site investigation
operation};

(b)  the property development segment;
[c]  the property invesiment and management segment; and

(d)  the “corporate and others” segment comprises, principally, the
Group's corporafe operation, machinery leasing and frading,
and E&M engineering businesses.



reEEEN(E)

FEEENERAEEEEN R ¥
B MELERERS ERERTHEZ
RE o D BRIUATRE HRAA
/(BB (ERBBBATRF/ (B8
ZiBEE) REE .

KRERBAESN(BR)TERAE
B2 HEQEXBRBATEAEE -
MBEA - BERARAEEERTIE
DFHERT (BRI -

NREETERTESRTA  EER
REE  BNHEAREHER  RAR
ZEBEEDREEEEERE

NRABETEREFERITER - BAH
BREERBRE  REASZKFRED
REEEEEH o

k1

DREBRZHEERERN2ERS
THERZEBRERZMERT
% o

><\

R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax.

The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, and fair value gains/losses from the Group's

financial instruments are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude derivative financial instrument, deferred tax
assefs, fax prepaid and time deposits as these assels are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabiliies are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties af the then prevailing
market prices.

£ 2015/2016
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4.

LA 2

reEsEEN(E)
HETEEH

(o) ZREIEEFUZE

NE - Segment revenue:
HEFMEEE  Sales to extemal customers

LS ERARFRELE R

Bt

b) FrEEE

LIRS EENEEMENE
RERBIBRECRARE -
BH—EFEEFZEHN

Y#491,130,196,0008T(ZF -5
F 1 662,183,000 7T) J3%K B E4T
BOER—RE-FPEHIHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Geographical information
(@)  Revenue from external customers
B ol HEAHE &e
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
ZE-xE 2R ZE-3E “E-1F CZE-E CT-RF ZE-nE CE-Rf
2016 2015 216 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
HS000 SO0 HKSO00  HEO00 HKSO00 K000 HESO0 K000
3,053,602 3,507,933 17573 34695 986,141 1003785 4057316 4836413
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.
(b)  Non-current assets
B il HEAMHE &4
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
ZE-nE 3R 2B CE-RF ZE-RE CE-RF ZE-nE CE-RE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
FEr FEr FEr FEr F&r FEr F&r &
HS000 SO0 HKS000 SO0 HKSO00 K000 KRS0 HKSO00
336,734 388,601 - 108 181773 1836140 518507 2,224 849

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$1,130,196,000 (2015:

HK$662,183,000) was derived from sales by the foundation piling
segment fo a single customer.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the value of foundation piling and

sife investigation contracts; income derived from property management;

renfal income from property leasing; and income from the sale of

properties held for sale, after eliminations of all significant infragroup

fransactions.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains, net is as follows:

SER S S R

2016 2015
FE FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Revenue:
Foundation piling and site invesfigation 3,018,427 3,752,214
Property development 959,964 991,260
Property invesiment and management 26,177 13,128
Others 52,748 79,811

4,057,316 4,836,413

Other income and gains, net:

Interest income 15,546 26,211
Insurance claims 4,164 3,458
Subsidy income* 226 165
Foreign exchange gains, net = 6,731
Fair value gains on derivative instruments -

fransaction not qualifying as hedge 5,302 229
Management service income 413 676

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, nef [note 39) 112,852 =

Others

*

7,908 4,849

146,411 42,319

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.

£ 2015/2016
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6. RBEKA 6.  FINANCE COSTS
—E-RE —E—AfF
2016 2015
FET T
HK$'000 HK$000
PITEEREX ZHE Inferest on bank borrowings and overdrafts 16,860 14,706
W BERPYERZENMEFE less: Inferest capitalised in properties under
(Bt 15) development (note 15) (5,364) =
11,496 14,706
7. BR¥RDRF 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEZBBRDEMENR, GIAT The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(credifing):

DIBIRRIEE :

Bz ZBE-RE —ZT-hfE

Notes 2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
BEMEKAR Cost of properties sold 423,562 441,331
W EATHE Kt B & T2 R Cost of foundation piling and site
invesfigation work 2,623,854 3,433,818
Pt AR A AR Cost of services rendered 84,927 102,164
wE Depreciation 13 79,953 78,913
REMA 2 RIRFBLNK Minimum lease payments under
operating leases 118,738 106,966
%R Auditors’ remuneration 2,833 2,563
EERM Employee benefit expense (including
(BREEEMS —WE8) - directors’ remuneration - note 8):
TERFS Wages and salaries 532,672 488,960
RIREFEIER Pension scheme contributions 15,916 15,095

548,588 504,055

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(credifing):

(Contd]

Mt —B-XE —F-If
Notes 2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), nef* 2,223 (6,731)

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment* 18 - 2,000
Impairment of frade receivables* 21 4 387
Impairment of other receivables, nef* 22 99 1,069

Loss on disposal and write-off of items

of property, plant and equipment* 2,904 180
loss on disposal of an

investment property* = 161
Loss/(gain) on disposal of

subsidiaries, net* 39 (112,852 790
Fair value gains on derivative

instruments - fransaction not

qualifying as hedge* (5,302) (229)
Changes in fair value of
investment properties 14 (32,390) (33,121)

Impairment of an amount due from
an associate 11 14

Rental income from operating leases

of machinery (18,052) (24,389)
Rental income from
investment properties (29,411) (13,9006)

Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and maintenance)
arising from renfo|—eoming

investment properties 5,077 6,555

* These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
P! )

and gains, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

£ 2015/2016

127



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

128

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"E=A=+—H

8. EEME

RIE EMRR - AR ARG 383(1)
(@]~ b~ () R ERAR(BREESRE
HEMGOIE2HRBECANFREESR

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Direcfors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant fo the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(al, (b), (c) and [f] of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

Bean T about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
—E-RE Z—ZET—nfF
2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
we Fees:
BITES Executive directors — —
FRITES Non-executive directors = —
BUFRTES Independent non-executive directors 1,152 1,152
WITES 2 HMBS - Other emoluments of executive directors:
HEN - =R R B Salaries, allowances and benéfits in kind 38,364 42,911
AERAEAL * Performance related bonuses* 4,458 =
RIKSETEIMER Pension scheme contributions 54 60
44,028 44,123

Y ARRMTESARFAEL K
ARAIMERBENADLETE - &
NSEREERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments

which are defermined as a percentage of the dividends declared by the
Company, which was referenced o the performance of the Group.
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8. EEME(#E) 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Contd)

ENSENEUEEMEWT

The remuneration paid or payable fo each of the direcfors is as follows:

E245) 9= 1214
REWFG it N
Salaries, FVerAAl STEIfE
allowances  Performance Pension
#E  and benefits related scheme w5t
Fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-RE 2016
HiTES ! Executive directors:
BRERE(REE]) Mr. Fung Chiy Chak, Victor
['Mr. Fung'] - 21,936 2,786 18 24,740
BRELE Mr. Chiv Chin Hung - 8,380 836 18 9,234
BB Mr. Lau Kin Fai - 8,048 836 18 8,902
- 38,364 4458 54 42,876
FHTES ! Non-executive directors:
ITRELAE Mr. Wang Tionbing - - - = =
Stuart Morrison Grant f4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant - - - - -
BEARE Mr. Yang Hon Hsiang' - - - - -
LT Mr. Jusfin Wai = = = = =
ERRLE Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard - - - - -
BUFHITES Independent non-execufive
directors;
LhELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 288 - - - 288
EN it Mr. Tse Man Bun 288 - - - 288
ETHARE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 288 - - - 288
ks Mr. Li Kit Chee 288 - - - 288
1,152 - - - 1,152
st Total 1,152 38,364 4,458 54 44,028

F% 2015/2016 129
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8. EEME(Z&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd)
EE - 28
RENHE BiRe
Salaries, BTt HE I
allowances  Performance Pension
#%  and benefits related scheme et
Fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
FET FHT FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-1f 2015
HTES ! Executive directors:
BEE Mr. Fung = 21,134 = 18 21,152
BHE/E? Miss Jennifer Kwok? = 6,189 = b 6,195
HEBEE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung = 8,088 = 18 8,106
ey S M. Lau Kin Fai - 7,500 — 18 7518
= 42911 = 60 42 971
FHTES Non-executive directors:
IRERE Mr. Wang Tionbing — - - = =
Stuart Morrison Grant 5t 4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant = = = = =
ey Mr. Yang Han Hsiong' = = = = -
BERELE Mr. Justin Wai = = - - -
BRRRRE M:r. Law Yiu Fot Richard - - - = =
BUFHTES Independent non-execufive
directors:
BELE M. Fan Chor Ho 288 = = = 288
HWRE Mr. Tse Man Bun 288 = = = 288
ETRRE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 288 - - - 288
T RE Mr. Li Kit Chee 288 = = = 288
1,152 = = = 1,152
st Total 1,152 42911 = 60 44,123

‘ HRAEERERARIETES - ¥
TR RNFATERER

: R MERHEAR R ABITEE (BT ’
EE|) N_T-WFCH-REK-

AEER  HEEEREXRERELT
AT 2 Bk

‘ Mr. Yang Han Hsiang resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 17 February 2016.

Miss Jennifer Kwok resigned as an executive director of the Company
[“Executive Director”) with effect from 1 July 2014.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo
waive any remuneration during the year.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2015: four directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2015: one| nondirector highest paid employees are as follows:

“E-RE —T—hF

2016 2015

FEr FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,255 4,807
Performance related bonuses* 668 =
Pension scheme contributions 18 18
9,941 4,825

H The nondirector highest paid employees are entitled to bonus payments
which are determined as a percentage of the dividends declared by the
Company, which was referenced fo the performance of the Group.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

EBEAH
Numbers of employees
—F-RE —F-h%F

2016 2015

HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000 1 |
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 —
2 |

£ 2015/2016
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10. PRSHI 10. INCOME TAX
BANGHRFANTBELE 2G5 Hong Kong profits fax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
ERB BN 2165%(ZF—HF: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%) {E LB o BHE fh it [= fE 2R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
BEM 2 HIAE RARER S G 23R calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which
TTEBBERGE - the Group operafes.
“E-XE ZThF
2016 2015
FET TIET
HK$000 HK$000
BNER Current:
ARERDRN 2 TAR - Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 48,947 18,371
HAbi = Elsewhere 345,075 335,623
394,022 353,994
FEEEEEE Overprovision in the prior years:
FE - PRC:
BE Hong Kong (79) (39)
H b= Elsewhere - (178)
79) 217)
ERERIE (M 29) Deferred tax (note 29) 45,386 (36,732)
AEEZHIBR #E Total tax charge for the year 439,329 317,045

132 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax af the sfatufory rates
Provision for land appreciation fax
Tax effect of land appreciation fax
Adjustments in respect of current fax of prior years
Income not subject fo fax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries
in Mainland China
Tax losses utilised from prior years
Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
sfatutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective fax rate is

—E-RE —ZT—AF
2016 2019
FiEx FErT
HK$000 HK$ 000
951,837 823,211
163,422 145,467
207,458 196,195
4,445 (21,293)
(79) (217)
(5,408) 4,513)
40,998 23,193
33,967 (22,071)
(9,809) (2,633)
4,332 2917
439,329 317,045

£ 2015/2016
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

AERRMARE :

BE_T-AS=-A=1—HIHR
FERHRE - SREAR
1508 Il(BE=_S—MF
ZRA=1+—HLLFE : 10.05#(l)

REIRR S — B A B 20.0 71l
(ZZ2—h%F : 5.0/()

EEIR RIS -
RS —B(—F—0F:
FAREBAR 15.0%()

. ARBAEBRRRRELGEREF

BRERAF THIRBA QR E @R R
RIE LA FE S 396,874,000
(= T — A F: 399,394,000/
TL)RRARFEENCHTERKREE
874,665,903 (—E—HF : LTAK
INHEFI58874,665,903 Bk )5t & o

BE T R"EN_Z—FHF=A

=t—HLEFE FAEEYEDHTE
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11. DIVIDENDS

—B-R"¥ ZFhF
2016 2015
& THETT
HK$°000 HK$ 000

Dividends paid during the year:

Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2015 - HK15.0 cents [year ended
31 March 2014: HK10.0 cents) per

ordinary share 131,200 87,467
Interim — HK20.0 cents (2015: HK5.0 cenfs)
per ordinary share 174,933 43,733

306,133 131,200

Proposed final dividend:
Final = Nil (2015: HK15.0 cents per
ordinary share) — 131,200

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year affributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$396,874,000 (2015: HK$399,394,000), and the number
of ordinary shares of 874,665,903 (2015: 874,665,903) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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HERELR
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ExAE

31 March 2016

Cos:
At beginning of year
Additions
Disposols/writeof
Disposal of subsidicres
[note 39(a] and [bl)

Fxchange realignment

RZE-AE=A=1t-H A 31 March 2016

ZHTERAE

&

KERFERR

HE /38
HEMERA

(W3t 39(a) R o)
[ R

A —
S
N—

REFE

=
=

<

Accumuloted depreciaion
and impaiment:
Atbeginning of year
Depreciation provided during
fhe year
Disposals/wiiteof
Disposal of subsidiaries
[note 39a) and (b))

Exchange redlignment

—AEZA=T-B A 31 March 2016

Net carrying amount:

RZE—7"E=A=1—H A3 March 2016

RZE-RE=A=1-H A 31 March 2015
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RER fiR

Bz £E BE

THREF  Equipment  Fumitre - BE 0556
lond and and and Motor Motor ~ Leasehold it
buildings  machinery fixtores ~ vehicles yacht - improvements Tofal
FEr FEn FEn FEr FEn FEr FEr
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
217,830 973,399 12,663 20,040 6,098 18,784 1248514
- 26,142 193 1447 - 2472 30,254
ST RIS R0 _98y o8]
- w7 L Sy (8Os
18 o) - )
217,348 964,183 4313 19,138 6,098 17811 1,228,891
30734 780,935 11,271 13,223 6,098 14286 856,547
7,980 67,329 601 1,807 - 2,236 79,953
S o3 I (1997) — 98 [32.459)
S p (639 - N TR ATY]
o 8) B (8 - Ly 5%
38,687 821,395 3,361 12,851 6,098 13,004 895,486
178,661 142,788 952 6,287 = 4717 333,405
186,796 192,464 1,392 6,817 - 4498 391,9¢7

£ 2015/2016
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HEMBAR
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13. M3 - HBERRB(E)

31 March 2015

Cost

At beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from properties held
for sale [note 19]

Disposals/writeoff

Disposol of subsidiaries
[note 39(d)|

Exchange redlignment

RZE-RF=A=1t-H A3l March2015

SRR

)
KERFERR

KERRERS

e/

HEMBAR
(K2 390)

B

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

At beginning of year

Depreciafion provided during
the year

Impaimen provided during
the yeor

Disposals /writef

Disposol of subsidiaries
[note 39(d)|

Exchange redlignment

RZE-RF=A=1t-H A3l March2015

REAE

Net carrying amount:

RZE-RF=A=1t-H A3l March2015

RZZ-ME=A=1-RB Ar31 March 2014

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—R"E=A=1+—8H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /Cont'd)

RER AN

e kg il

THEEF  Equpment  Fumilve g B 0RRE
Land and ond ond Molor Molor  Leasehold a5t
buldings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles yocht  improvements Tolal
TEL TAL TAL 7L TEL 7L 7L
HS000  HKS000  HKSO00 SO0 HKSO00  HKS000 HkEOO0
217524 926,100 12,885 20,850 6,098 18495 1201952
SR8 168 5,502 = 01 82,780
7 = s L - = 7
B (28.517) (322 (6,311] - - 36,150
- - (68) - - - (68]
(1 Q) - (1 - 2 Y
207530 97339 12603 20,040 6,098 18784 1248514
2752 73979 10,828 17,228 6,098 10281 806,946
7983 66478 723 1,479 - 225 78913
- 242 - - - 1758 2,000
- (25541 212) (5,482 - - (31,23
- - (68) - - - (6]
(1 Q) - 2 - 13 9
30734 780935 11,271 13,223 6,098 14286 856,547
186796 192,464 1,392 6,817 - 4498 391967
194772 186,341 2,057 3,022 - 8214 395,006
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
fo the Group [nofe 28].
Cerfain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased fo third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—B-R"E —FAF
2016 2015
FHET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Carrying amount at beginning of year 618,317 532,976
Additions — 54,949
Transfer from properties held for sale (nofe 19) 42,155 22,307
Disposal 0y (2,241)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(a), (b) and (c)) (488,722) [22,530)
Fair value changes 32,390 33,121
Exchange realignment (31,504) (265)
Carrying amount af end of year 172,636 618,317

The Group's investment properties as at 31 March 2016 consist
of commercial properties in Mainland China (2015: commercial
properiies and residential properties in Mainland Chinal). The directors
of the Company have defermined that the investment properiies consist
of one [2015: two) class of asset, i.e., commercial (2015: commercial
and residential), based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each
property. The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2016 based on valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified property
valvers, at HK$172,636,000 (2015: HK$618,317,000). Each
year, the Company's directors decide to appoint which external valuer
fo be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company's
directors have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased fo third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in nofe 34(a) to
the financial statements.

£ 2015/2016
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14.

REWX(E)

RFEZREE

14.

TRIITAKERENE A VEFTE

FRRE

UTRE 2 &R
DNFHEE

[GESYES

WNARZ &Rk
ATEHE

CELES

%

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

Commercial properties

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

Commercial properties
Residential properties

RAFERN FIEERF2EZHLE
EMAVEFEER  AFEIELEE
ASEH(ZT—hF: &)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's investment properiies:

RZE-A"E=ZA=1-H
ERAUT 8B B ATE
Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2016 using

ERME  BATEE EXATUER

H®E BAHE WAE

(£158) (52F) (%£38)

Quoted  Significant  Significant

pricesin  observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FiET FET FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
= = 172,636 172,636

RZZE-hF=A=+—H

ERA T BB ERYE
Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2015 using

EETS  BAUBE BATAUER

WE 8RR B ABUR

(B1E) (B2F) (F£3E)

Quoted  Significant  Significant

prices in  observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs st
[Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FAT FAET FAT FAT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
- — 103,042 103,042
- — 515,275 515,275
- — 618,317 618,317

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements

between Llevel 1 and Llevel 2 and no transfers into or out of level 3

(2015: Nil).
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14. REYE(E) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

A FEEREHEE)

SEREBATESRERLATE

Fair valve hierarchy (Contd

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of

AT EZ R : the fair value hierarchy:

[EELYES FEME
Commercial ~ Residential
properties properties
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
R-ZE—NFMNA—HZEREE Carrying amount at 1 April 2014 42,522 490,454
NE Additions = 54,949
EEABEHHEE 2METE19)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 19) 22,307 =
HE Disposal = (2,241)
& —RMB AR (K 39(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(c)) (22,530 =
N EEE) Fair value changes 60,815 (27,694
b 5 AR Exchange realignment (72) (193)

R-ZZE-RF=A=+—H Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 and
RZZE-—RAFNA—HZEREA 1 April 2015 103,042 515,275
EREAREHEE 2METE19)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 19) 42,155 -
B8 2 8] (B3 39(a) K (b)) Disposal of subsidiaries (nofe 39(a) and (b)) - (488,722)
NHEEE Fair value changes 32,390 -
EE 5% % Exchange realignment (4,951) (26,553)
RZZE-—R"E=ZA=+—B2ZKHEE Carying amountat 31 March 2016 172,636 -

£ 2015/2016
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14. REWX(E)

RFEERREE(E)

AT AREDEGERBMGETERE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy (Cont'd

Below is a summary of the valuation fechniques used and the key inputs

PRABBIHE to the valuation of investment properties:
EATTEER
BAHE
tER % Significant #E (EF9E)
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range (weighted average|
- TR
2016 2015
I E i BRME BERLEE ARMERAELR S51%ZE-10% 40%ZE-3%
Commercial properties Direct comparison Property-specific (-35%) (-5%)
in Mainland China approach adjusiment rafe -51% 1o -10% -40% 10 -3%
(35% 5%
I B 2 (EEWF BREEE ARMERAELR AER  -105E2%(-8%)
Residential properiies Direct comparison Property-specific N/A -10% to 2%
in Mainland China approach adjustment rafe (8%

AEEREMEZ AFEDERERL
BE - 2ELHMSPALBYE D
HEBYMAEERENFDIRHE

flrtmemiE - g BEREEE

BEMET - ATEHERIBY LM
BAIESAAFEERHTTRESA
B 2 EARRIRRIR -

. BREPYE

FHEETT

AEERE
BRERAHRHEEZME(HE19)
BAEF B (M O)

B 5L 2%

FRER
& : BIEEE D

e D)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

The fair value of the Group's invesiment properties is determined using

the direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of

comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,

floor level and quality of the Group's investment properties compared to

the recent sales. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to

the unobservable input that the higher the adjusiment rafe will result in o

higher fair value.

15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—E-RE =ZE—nF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
Balance at beginning of year 1,275,554 1,171,959
Additions during the year 575,141 517,051
Transfer o properties held for sale (note 19) (30,846) (413,000
Interest capitalised (nofe 6) 5,364 =
Exchange realignment (52,254) [456)
Balance at end of year 1,772,959 1,275,554
less: current portion (1,772,959) (65,5006)
Non-current portion — 1,210,048
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16. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

SEVTNSgit
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000

Share of net assets — T

Amount due from an associate 384 378
384 373
less: Impairment (384) (373)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

MR, AL B
FriFE &7 AR EREY FERERAEIL

BADEEE Place of Percentage
Particulars incorporation/ of ownership
£ of issued registration  inferest attributable FEXEK
Name shares held and business fo the Group Principal activity
—B-NF ZT-0F
2016 2015
NEREBR AT RG] BE 50 50 REZR
Turbo Dragon Investment Limited Ordinary share Hong Kong Investment holding
AHEERE 17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

RETBRARRE - WA

R-_E—RNE=ZRA=+—H ' ®|
B1,197,000% (= & — & F:
1,249,000%7T) 2 K ETRARE R
KASHREE - BReBATEMET
ZEERBK  EFRAEATFEELT
FiTE - AEEESNIHBELE -

—E-XF —T-1F
2016 2015
FET &L
HK$°000 HK$000

Unlisted equity investment, at cost 1,197 1,249

As at 31 March 2016, an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of HK$ 1,197,000 (2015: HK$1,249,000) was stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it
in the near future.

£ 2015/2016
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18.

20.
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18. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Spare parts and others

19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At beginning of year

Transfer o property, plant and equipment
(note 13

Transfer fo investment properties (note 14)

Transfer from properties under development
(note 15)

Properties sold during the year

Exchange realignment

At end of year

20. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Amounts due from customers for contract works
Amounts due to customers for contract works

Confract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses fo date
less: Progress billings received and receivable

—E-RE ZE—AF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
642 639
22,909 13,543
23,551 14,182
—E-RE —ZE—AF
2016 2015
FBT FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
646,659 604,640
= (7)
(42,155)  (22,307)
30,846 413,000
(313,263) (348,800)
(19,491) 139
302,596 646,659
—E-rF  ZFIF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
116,625 160,041
(660,898 (686,495)
(544,273) (526,454
12,207,275 10,865,475
(12,751,548) (11,391,929
(544,273)  (526,454)
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit

standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo

policies that follow local industry
frade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade and retention receivables relate fo a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its frade and retention receivable balances. Trade
and refention receivables are non-interestbearing.

—E-RF _—Z-1F

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$000 HK$000

Trade and retention receivables 727,634 1,017,028

Impairment (391) (387)
727,243 1,016,641

Included in the trade and retention receivables is an amount due from
a related company of HK$572,000 (2015: HK$254,000), which is
repayable on credit ferms similar fo those offered to the major customers
of the Group.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and nef of provision, is as follows:

—F-R"% ZFhF
2016 2015
FET THTT
HK$000 HK$ 000

FEWE ZBRN Trade receivables:
Q0 HA Within 90 days 415,191 629,061
QIHZE180H 91 to 180 days 5,205 117
81HE360H 181 to 360 days 3,535 10,388
360 R £ Over 360 days 12,619 2,180
436,550 641,746
FEWREE Refention receivables 290,693 374,895
727,243 1,016,641

£ 2015/2016
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21.

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

—F-R"¥ ZFhF

2016 2015

FET TIET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

At beginning of year 387 194
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 4 387
Disposal of subsidiaries — [194)
At end of year 391 387

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables of
HK$391,000 (2015: HK$387,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$391,000 (2015: HK$387,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of the frade and refention receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

—E-RE —E—nfF

2016 2015

FET TIET

HK$ 000 HK$000

Neither past due nor impaired 669,812 940,799
1 to 90 days past due 36,615 63,157
91 to 270 days past due 4,896 117
More than 270 days past due 15,920 12,568
727,243 1,016,641

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable. The
carrying amounfs of the trade and refention receivables approximates fo
their fair values.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

SEVTNSgit
2016 2015
FET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000

Deposits for acquisition of items of property,
plant and equipment - %7
Prepayments and deposits 52,951 51,750
Other receivables 236,192 24,233
less: Impairment (4,215 (4,292
284,928 72,408

less: Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables classified as non-current assets

(1,386)  [1,918)
283,542 70,490

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as

follows:
—F-RE ZFRF
2016 2015
FEr &L
HK$°000 HK$ 000
At beginning of year 4,292 3,226
Impairment losses recognised, nef (nofe 7| 99 1,069
Exchange realignment (176) (3)
At end of year 4,215 4,292

Except for other receivables of HK$4,215,000 (2015:
HK$4,292,000) which were fully impaired, none of the above assets
is either past due or impaired and the financial assets included in the

above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.
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23. PTHESRITA 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

—E-RE —E—AF

2016 2015
FET THT
HK$000 HK$'000
FRBDEEITESRMIA Derivative financial instrument under nonrcurrent assefs:
RXEBE=H Cross currency swap 8,533 -
REEERI—ERXEMEBH  UE The Group enfered info a cross currency swap to manage its exchange
BHEXRER - ZX X EE= 81 3 rate exposures. This cross currency swap is not designated for hedging
SRR H) - WIRAFET AR ° purpose and is measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in
FEHTETAZ A FEESH 2 EF the fair value, net, of the non-hedging derivative amounting fo a gain of
8,533,000 (= —RF : &)t HK$8,533,000 (2015: Nil) were credited fo the statement of profit or
AFRAZBHERA - ZEeBMITAZE loss during the year. The carrying amount of the financial instrument was
HEEEQNTERS - LATASRT the same as ifs fair value. The above transaction involving a derivative
AP RR 5 TE—HEEBR T BT financial instrument was conducted with a creditworthy financial
WEENFEL & BT o institution with no recent hisfory of default.
REZE-_ZE-—RF=A=+—HILHF During the year ended 31 March 2015, changes in the fair value,
€« JEERF RS s AR EZE 2 net, of non-hedging inferest rate swaps amounting fo a gain of
AF 4,113,000 T ABZRA ° HK$4,113,000, were credited to the statement of profit or loss.

24. WERBITERF EHRFARZ 24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

FREIIRE RESTRICTED CASH
fiF ZEBE-ARE Z—T—AfF
Notes 2016 2015
FEx &L
HK$000 HK$000

EHRER - Time deposits:

—HipFHIfFR — other fime deposits [a) 1,013,868 443,862
— BT — sfructured deposits (b) 289,721 302,570
TR Total time deposits (c) 1,303,589 746,432
Re RIBTER Cash and bank balances al 502,830 541,064
XRHRE Restricted cash (d) - 24,000
HBET Total 1,806,419 1,311,496
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A

REBSHMER -

Hi

(a)

(bl

(c)

(d

ROTEFRREARTHESRNKRHFEZ
FEHERDAE - EHEREAFT
RzBERHR M F7RERLZR(Z
Z-RF: MEAR)AIE  BFA
SEEZEEREFRME - LIRFE
ZTE SN KRN 8 o RITETF
LREFERINTERNEL 28
BEZHIT -

RBEUERAABETRHER T
BMER BEERAIE - EHF
FEBLRZFRHR - N F 14K
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BEBEER AR E @ -

EHREERRESRETR =A%
Bl E IR0 42,603,000 T (=&
—RF )

RZZE-HF=A=+—08 RE
HEARTREBAERMERTEK
24,000,000 TERTTRFFFH
173£ 24,000,000 B T (KizE 28) ©
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Contd)

Denominated in:

Renminbi ("RMB’)

HK$
Macao patacas
Other currencies

Ao L | A=A

2016 2003

FET FHT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

536,206 753,462

1,260,250 550,156

("MOP’) 9,232 6,966
731 912

1,806,419 1,311,496

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under

Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Setflement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Nofes:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d

Cash at banks earns inferest af floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between 7
days to 32 days (2015: within two months| depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn inferest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of defaulr.

The structured deposits are time deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are stated at amortised cost. The deposits are made for varying periods
of between 14 days to 94 days (2015: within two months). The
interest rates on the structured deposits fluctuated based on changes in
the currency exchange rate between USD and HK$. The Group uses
structured deposits primarily fo enhance the refurn on invesiment.

Included in the balance are time deposits of HK$42,603,000 (2015:
Nil) of which the origino| maturity is more than three months when
acquired.

As at 31 March 2015, a deposit of HK$24,000,000 was maintained
in a bank account for an interestbearing bank loan of HK$24,000,000
pursuant fo the relevant banking facilities (note 28).

4 2015/2016

147



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

25. BNESERR BUYREZRE 25. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

FTRUIE
WERHAHE  BENEFRARESH An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
RZEROMT : period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—F-R"F ZThF
2016 2015
FHET BT
HK$'000 HK$000
FBNESEN Trade payables:
Q0 B Within 90 days 193,460 296,839
Q1HZ180H 91 to 180 days 273 1,849
180 £ Over 180 days 531 1,560
194,264 300,248
ENRE R Retention payables 190,870 184,246
FEETRIE Accruals 253,987 439,188
639,121 923,682
B OBRIERBEEZESTHIE  Less: Accrual classified as non-current liabilities (4,387) =
634,734 923,682
ENEFEXREMNRESHARLE The trade and refention payables are non-inferestbearing and are
—REFHRNTE - normally seffled on 90-day terms.

26. HEMEAFIE ckET £ KTk 26. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS

IR IN'ADVANCE
HipEMZEY ARE - THEZEHA Other payables are non-inferestbearing and have an average ferm of
—f&A - one month.

27. EWET® 27. DEPOSITS RECEIVED
BRI EBEELRTMERESHR Deposits received represented the down payments received from
BREMAEEHEMEHNESNEETR customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of properties under
FUER & - AEERWEDEER development and sale contracts of properties held for sale of the Group.
HEEEME - ARNETFIIREH The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when they were still
BEREZBREENE - BEFARELE under development. As contracted with customers, deposits were paid
EXfE¢ - AEBREZZESE to the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale contracts. Such amounts
HERS - held by the Group are non-interestbearing.
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28. MIESRITEE 28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
E-RE %
2016 2015
BERFI= iR
Effective Effective
inferest rate HRR  FAET  interestrate HRE  FET
(% Maturity — HK$000 (% Matuity — HK$000
Eiiptil Unsecured:
RITER Bank loans 2340 20162018 768,993 1.7-3.4 20152017 271,774
Pepiiviil Secured:
RITER Bank loans 27 20162017 6,100 2.7 20152017 9940
PHER Instalment loans 1.9 20162031 81,853 1.7 20152031 86,185
87,953 06,125
RTEEHE Total bank borrowings 856,946 367,899

—E-RE —T—HF

2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
BETHIEB A Analysed into:

ARTHBEAERRITEE Bank borrowings repayable:
RN—FRHIRE K Within one year or on demand 198,568 143,278
FEF In the second year 199,869 104,200
F-FEFERF(BEERMTE) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 398,840 56,684
tHEEhF Beyond five years 59,669 63,737

856,946 367,899

BR—FRER  2A Portion due within one year, classified
mEBEIHS as current liabilities (198,568)  (143,278)
REIE S long ferm portion 658,378 224,621
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28.

B SERITEE(E)

RERATE  AEBOLAREE
SRR BT 2,260,000 87
(ZZ2—AF : 6,100,000 7) 25T A
EDENT 8 BATEE - LA AR —ER
SREREE S EARTEH -

RBRITER ZIHHR - HARTE
RZEBRSRR R_T—RERZ
E-RE=A=t—BZAR—FA%
2 2R 2 Bl X 2 196,308,000/
LR 137178000 L RZE—R
FRZZ-AF=A=+—BZER
£ -F 7RI X F2202,129,000% T
£ 108,040,000/ 7L« R =& — R4
R—ZE-—hF=RA=T—HZARE=
FEFIF(BREREME)D AN
2 398,840,000 Tt K& 58,944,000%
T RZB-AFR-_FB-—AF=H
ST-RZAREFREDRIXfFZ
59,669,000 7T K% 63,737,000/ 7T °

R-ZE-RF=ZRA=+—-H'F&
Bz ERROTRENAEREER
174,895,000% (= & — & F:
182,673,000 ) 2 & A L4 - #
F o RN e (R 13/ -

RZZ-RF=A=+—H x&£EZ
&K R1T 55 24,000,000 LA 1R
BRERERTRE HETRERTRS 2
77 524,000,000 7 £2 # #& R (MY 7E
24d)) - ZRITIEENFANEREE -

AN - RRBEHEETHB ARG
ZEERER RN 306() - Bk
KGEBHZAERAR(HEDRAER
AE T IME A B 2 BEBCR) IRstak M
BRREG C RITRE R EARR -

SEMARTEEDRIBN R
B RITBEZREEEE QA FEME

o

fom Bt

A& B 2 RITREFRAETTRHE ©
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in
the amount of HK$2,260,000 (2015: HK$6,100,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current interest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$ 196,308,000 and
HK$137,178,000 payable within one year or on demand as af
31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively; HK$202,129,000 and
HK$ 108,040,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2016
and 2015, respectively; HK$398,840,000 and HK$58,944,000
payable in the third o fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2016 and
2015, respectively; HK$59,669,000 and HK$63,737,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's secured bank borrowings were
secured by cerfain of ifs land and buildings, equipment and machinery
(note 13 with carrying amounts of HK$174,895,000 (2015:
HK$182,673,000).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's unsecured bank borrowing
amounting to HK$24,000,000 was supported by a deposit of
HK$24,000,000 maintained in a bank account pursuant fo the relevant
banking facilities [note 24(d)). The bank borrowing was fully seftled
during the year.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted fo certain of its subsidiaries [note 36(al).
Mr. Fung, who is a beneficial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company through Fortunate Pool Limited (“Fortunate Pool”), also
provided personal guarantees in respect of borrowing facilities granted
o these subsidiaries.

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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29. EELEBIIE 29. DEFERRED TAX
RAEERN  BERBARBEREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assefs during the year are
BT : as follows:
FEAEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
B
BHEH

Bk WEHD
REME  Allowance in

Revaluation excess of FRHH
of investment related  Withholding H
properties  depreciation taxes Total

TFET FAT FAT FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

RZZE-MEMA—RB At Apil 2014 (102,189) (13,812)  (139,298] (255,299
FRNBIEEKFTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(%) 2RI fo the statement of profit or loss

HIA(KIFE10) during the year [note 10) (9,410) 2,778 22,071 15,439

SRR EAR] Withholding tax paid on
Bz BRI 2 repatriation of eamings from

M subsidiaries in Mainland China = = 16,042 16,042
HE B AF Disposal of a subsidiary

(Bi5E39(c) (note 39(c)) 560 — — 560
bE 5 SR Exchange realignment 53 = (112) (59)
RZZE—0F At 31 March 2015

=R=+—Hk and

—Z-REMNA—A 1 April 2015 (110,986) (17,034) [101,297) (223,317
FRNBIEEKETA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(k) 2 fo the statement of profit or loss

BB 10) during the year [note 10) (10,048) 3,074 (33,967) (40,941)

s B AMHEAR  Withholding fox paid on
B 2 &2 I S A+ repatriation of eamings from

o B0 subsidiaries in Mainland China - - 25,789 25,789
HEMBAR] Disposal of subsidiaries

(Pf7E 39(a) K (b)) [note 39(a) and (b)) 88,062 = - 88,062
b 5 SR Exchange realignment 5,887 - 4216 10,103
RZT—RF

—Bp=+—7 At 31 March 2016 (27,085) 7.960)  (105,259)  (140,304)
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

Deferred tax assets

+ i IEER
e
Provision

for land
appreciation

tax
FAT
HK$'000
At 1 Apiil 2014 34,572
Deferred tax credited tfo the sfatement of profit or loss
during the year [note 10) 21,293
Exchange realignment (36)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015
55,829
Deferred tax charged to the stafement of profit or loss
during the year [note 10) (4,445)
Exchange realignment (2,251)
At 31 March 2016 49,133

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$238,457,000
(2015: HK$281,075,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that faxable profits will be
available against which the fax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax [“CIT") law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared 1o foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a fax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
—E-RE —T-—AF
2016 2015
FiE FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid:
874,665,903 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 87,466 87,466

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option schemes are included in note 31
o the financial statements.

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
2012 Scheme') for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
fo eligible participants who confribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to
be granted under the 2012 Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No share option has
been granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year.

£ 2015/2016
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BRERTEI(E)

ARRZ —F——FFrEMEWLT :

El:)

Purpose

AERSEE
Eligible Participants
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows:

FEER(EEREURLBRENRZDEER ARG UK
BUHAKE R/ FAKBEMKERAFEEARNER 2 EME
BZEY ZRMERFERIARZAERS /\% HEE AR
SEEBRRMEAERAEBZ AR UHEARBRARAIRR
ZEBNERER  RANEQRER2EESZEELBSHRAERM
ERZAR 7%%%}35%  BEAREGURFHEREURAEER
BEEBLMBERRKRABEZRERES -

To enable the board of directors (the “Board”) to grant options to
reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit or had contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever)
of the Group and/or any of the entities in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, and fo provide incentives fo eligible
participants fo perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
in the interests and benefits of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole, while at the same time allowing the eligible
participants fo share the fruits of the Company's business achieved
through their effort and confribution, as well as fo enable the Group fo
recruit high quality employees who are valuable to the management
and long ferm business and financial goals and success of the Group.

ERZ2E_Z-_FHEz AL BIRRABISERME A sk
ERAEREBIFBES TRAE SRABEXEFR(EREH
17 BT RB M TER ) A EEZREER R UK H AR
R/SERHBARN, REMERER ¥  ERIER(RE
ARG E)E BRI A R AEBEAARE - FAA - BRE - 1Jt
BA - fEmsRERGImEm - e RS - MRERE) -

P D - RBMBERaERH -

A person who is enfitled fo participate in the 2012 Scheme, being any
fulHime or parttime employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the interested
entiies and any confractors, advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers or
providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries, materials or
services), customers, disfributors, business ally or joint venture partners
of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the Board, will
contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited to the business,
development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever) of the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or any of the interested

entities.
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ARBZ T _FFrEHEQMT
(%)

A FETZ EBRAS N FRER A
HEETRAZBDL

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as at the
date of the annual report

BE2EEZHSLR
Maximum entiflement of each participant

RIEEREVAREE S R
Period within which the securities must be
faken up under an opfion

RITERTIN BB BB 2 & IEHAR
Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

iISESALET AP

Amount payable on acceptance
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Contd)

87,266,590 B E B K B #HITIRAZ 10% (Gt EEE /R ARFIR
RERAGHHM-_T——F/\A/\HZ872,665903KEEITR
7)o

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meefing on 8 August 2012.

TEHEBNMER 1 2@ A PRE LA S BETRARZ 1% -
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

REeRESRRTEALENEEERESNGEZARA - 1§
Pt < B A NMSER R L B AREREE Bt + (105K »

To be determined by the Board on a casetocase basis at its absolute
discrefion and nofified fo the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry

date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concemed.

HHEZRRIEETE -

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

ﬁ o
Nil.

£ 2015/2016

155



156

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"E=A=+—H

31. BRETEI(E)

ARBIZ ZFT—_FrafEZQT:

(&

BETEECEE

Basis for determining the exercise price

ATEIZ R N

The remaining life of the scheme
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)

S EBREMS -

In respect of any particular option:

RITEEREREN AR 2 GREHER HAEZFRLERE_T
—ZFi 22 BRNELBRER TR TEREEEERE LR
E - ETRENSIRUATSET RS

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on a
casefocase basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the 2012 Scheme,
in its absolute discretion upon the grant of the option, provided that such
exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the following:

() By zmEfE:

the nominal value of a share;

b BEERLAH(ARERE)NMRAERRERMRZR
g - &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

(] EEBRERLAPALO)EZXANBRAZEEARER
P B0 P (E © 3
the average closing price of the shares as stafed in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

BRBBE( X o) E () i) 2 TEE(ER) - TREERRE
- CFHEATRR(ETRR) N EAEN T FHERE
SN ERBTREZRR TR FE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo a) fo [c) above) as may be adjusted by the Board from time fo time
pursuant fo the rules of the 2012 Scheme conceming adjustments of,
inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any relevant event

as defined in the 2012 Scheme.

—T-CFEE T —F \AREBF T F PEINAE ML
R-FZ—F\ALRARAZ EXERGREEW °

The 2012 Scheme remains in force for a period of ten (10) years
commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring at the close of business
hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.



31. BRESTEIE)

32.

BRETERTHA ARIRBE SRR
RAg LRE 2R -

RBE_Z-—A"EF=A=+t—HILEFE
FPEEREZEMBHRRER —F
—ZFAHETYEBREERL 1T
i~ BHISRM  MEEFARITEBR
1

(E1i]

REAFERBREFEASERESER
HEPNIBRR GRS EP R
5

REFINEEEREZBRED RIEH -
AEBES R M BAR B
FIBBEERTE Rk AT R °

31.

32.

R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
at shareholders” meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and up fo the date of approval
of these financial statements, no share option under the 2012 Scheme
was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there is no oufstanding
share option under the 2012 Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint
venture enferprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries
which are registered in the PRC has been transferred fo statutory reserves
which are resfricted as to use.
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33. BAEXGFERRRER 2D
BEEMELAE
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FEHEEMBAR(REAIZALE
(BR)KE )2 FFERBRR LS -

FEBBCRER A ZBEB D
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B —f3FER R R
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests are set out below.

The information set out below represents the non-controlling interests in

Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

(collectively, “Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group”).

—F-R"¥ ZFhF
2016 2015
Percenfage of equity interest held
by non-controlling inferests 40% 40%
TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests 115,660 104,599
Dividend paid fo non-controlling interests 184,000 124,000
loan advanced from a nonontrolling
shareholder (note| — 32,000
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests
at the end of the reporting period 88,761 189,101

Nofe: The balance was unsecured, inferestfree and fully repaid during the year.
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

EANEAR(E) CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Contd)

TRINFRAME(EE) KB 2 HMBE The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of
FHEE - BB ETARREHE Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group. The amounts disclosed are
GIE S before any intercompany eliminations:

Yogs

BRI FR
FRE R
FAZEREER

MBEE
FRBEE
AR
FRBEE

REREXH REREFR
KB/ (AR )REEB R EREFE
FARBERB R REFR

Be LERR SR EINFE

REROZ

(o) TEBHEA

AEBERBLEEOLH - UE
HNERNF—2t+HEAR -
HEETHS(HE 13 RARE
W (B 14) - HAOGR—RI
ERMPREPIMERTE R
RERBRTRAEHRELEESSR

%%o

—E-RE —E-1f

2016 2015
FHET T
HK$000 HK$'000
Revenue SIONBY 27 ¥ 3. 752,204
Total expenses, net (2)729277)% (3,490,717
Profit for the year 289,150 261,497
Total comprehensive income for the year 289,150 261,497
Current assets 1,514,355 1,784,361
Non-current assets 117,031 157,819
Current liabilities (1,213,386) (1,457,608
Non-current liabilities (196,098) (91,820)
Net cash flows from operating acfivities 438,955 327,733
Net cash flows from/[used in) investing acfivifies (19,275) 46,225
Net cash flows used in financing activities (315,114) (324,400
Nef increase in cash and cash equivalents 104,566 49 558

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 13) and
its investment properties [note 14) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
fo seventy-five months. The ferms of the leases generally also
require the tenanfs and customers to pay security deposifs and
provide for periodic rental adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.
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34.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)  As lessor (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had fotal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

—EBE-RE ZE-—REF

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Within one year 12,620 36,190
In the second o fifth years, inclusive 26,227 19,433
Alter five years 2,009 869
40,856 56,492

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negofiated for terms ranging from five
fo thirty-six months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—E-RE ZE—nfF

2016 2015

FEr FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Within one year 17,597 58,700
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive 13,602 3,267
31,199 61,967
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35. COMMITMENTS

In addifion to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 34(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

ZE-RE —ZT—AF
2016 2015
FHET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties:
— contracted, but not provided for — 6,586
Construction works relating fo properties
under development:
— contracted, but not provided for 393,734 878,527

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

[a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

—F-R"E ZFRF
2016 2015
FET THTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Guarantees in respect of performance bonds
in relation to subsidiaries 195,469 416,775
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Contd)

(bl

As at 31 March 2016, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of morigage facilities granted by Shenyang Housing Fund
Management Center relafing to the mortgage loans arranged
for purchases of certain properties developed by a subsidiary of

the Company and the oufstanding mortgage loans under these
guarantees amounted to HK$ 14,277,000 (2015: Nil).

The Group's guarantee period sfarts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon issuance of the relevant
ownership cerfificates.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the directors
consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principal fogether with the accrued interest
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made for these
guarantees in the financial statements.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group's balances with its associate, a related
company and a non-controlling interest as at the end of
the reporting period are included in notes 16, 21 and 33,
respectively, to the financial statements. The maximum amount
due from a related company outstanding during the year was
HK$3,471,000 as disclosed pursuant o section 383(1)(d) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

Short ferm employee benefits
Postemployment benefits

management personnel

Total compensation paid to key

“E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
FE FET
HK$000 HK$'000
59,795 57,687
108 114
59,903 57,801

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(1)  Subcontracted works with related companies

(i

i

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group subcontracted E8M works of approximately
HK$150,000 (2015: Nil) to Tysan Engineering
(H.K.) Company Limited (“TEHK") (a then subsidiary
of the Company disposed of to Mr. Fung on 19
December 2014).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Tysan
Building Construction Company Limited (“TBC”,
a company ultimately controlled by Mr. Fung)
subcontracted rental and engineering works relating
fo tower cranes of approximately HK$993,000
(2015: HK$5,612,000] to the Group.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(1)

(2)

Subcontracted works with related companies (Contd)

il

(iv)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
subcontracted building and construction works of
approximately HK$691,000 to TBC.

During the period from 1 April 2014 1o 19
December 2014, TBC subcontracted E&M works of
approximately HK$2,600,000 to TEHK.

Rental charges and management fees received from

related companies

(il

i

During the year ended 31 March 2016, TBC
paid rental charge and management fee of
HK$695,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$269,000
(2015: HK$490,000), respectively, to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, TEHK paid
rental charge and management fee of HK$202,000
(2015: Nil) and HK$78,000 (period from 20
December 2014 to 31 March 2015: HK$39,000),
respectively, fo the Group.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c)  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(2) Rental charges and management fees received from
related companies (Contd)

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2016, Cando
Trading limited (@ company ultimately controlled
by Mr. Fung] paid renfal charge and management
fee of HK$168,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$66,000
(2015: Nil), respectively, to the Group.

(iv)  Subsequent to the resignation of Miss Jennifer Kwok
as an Executive Director with effect from 1 July
2014, Tysan Trading Company Limited (“TTCL")
ceased fo be a related company of the Group.
During the period from 1 April 2014 to 30 June
2014, TTICL paid management fee of HK$ 110,000
fo the Group.

(3)  During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, Mr.
Fung provided personal guarantees to financial institutions
in connection with general credit facilities and performance
bonds granted fo certain subsidiaries of the Company.

These fransactions were enfered info by the Group and ifs related
companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:
(Contd)

The related party fransactions in respect of items (c)(1) and (c)(2)
above and the disposals as detailed in notes 39(c) and 39(d) fo
the financial statements also constituted connected fransactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Personal guarantees
provided by Mr. Fung as disclosed in item (c)(3) above consfitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the listing
Rules and are exempted from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

38. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 18 March 2015, Tysan Property Development & Investment Limited
(“TPDIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the non-
controlling shareholder of Sparkle Key Limited, entered info a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which, TPDIL acquired a 3% equity
interest in Sparkle Key Llimited from the non-controlling shareholder
and the inferestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$10,800,000 owing
by Sparkle Key Limited fo the non-confrolling shareholder af a cash
consideration of HK$15,000,000 (of which HK$4,200,000 was
for the acquisition of the equity interest in Sparkle Key Limited and
HK$ 10,800,000 was for the settlement of the shareholder's loan) (the
“Sparkle Key Acquisition”). The Sparkle Key Acquisition was complefed
on 18 March 2015.

Upon the completion of the Sparkle Key Acquisition, Sparkle Key
Limited became an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Sparkle Key Acquisition did not result in any change in control
by the Company over Sparkle Key Limited and such acquisition was
accounted for as an equity fransaction. Accordingly, the debit balance
of HK$3,246,000, between the consideration of HK$ 15,000,000,
and the aggregate of the carrying amount of the non-ontrolling inferest
of HK$954,000 and the loan from the then non-controlling shareholder
of HK$10,800,000, was recorded in the retained profits in the equity
for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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39. HEKBEAF 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

o) HEGEKRE

(a] Disposal of Hiat Investment
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On 11 December 2015, the Group and an independent third
parly (the “Hiaf Investment Purchaser”), entered info a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which, the Hiat Investment
Purchaser acquired the entire equity inferest in Hiat Investment
and the interestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$23,495,000
owing by Hiat Investment fo the Group at a fotal consideration
of RMB87,500,000 (equivalent to HK$105,577,000) (the
"Hiat Investment Disposal”). The Hiat Investment Disposal
was completed on 11 December 2015. Hiatf Investment was
principally engaged in property leasing and management
business in Shanghai and the registered owner of the whole of
Block B and twentyfive car parks of Aidu Apariment located in
Shanghai for residential use.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a cash consideration
of RMB83,000,000 (equivalent to HK$100,192,000) was
received. A consideration of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,787,000) was received subsequent to the end of the
reporting period. According to the ferms of the sale and purchase
agreement, the remaining consideration of RMB500,000
[equivalent to HK$598,000) will be settled in December 2016.
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a] Disposal of Hiat Investment (Contd)

Nef assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables
Deferred tax liabilities
Loan from the Group

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
Loan from the Group assigned
loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Other receivables

Total consideration

—E-RE

2016

Hist FET
Notes HK$000

13 43
14 134,812
153

63

(132)

(3)

29 (13,456)
(23,495)

97,985

(13,898)
23,495
(2,005)

105,577

100,192
5,385

105,577
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(e

(6]

Disposal of Hiat Investment (Contd

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the Hiat Investment Disposal during the year ended 31
March 2016 is as follows:

ZE-RE

2016

FET

HK$'000

Cash consideration 100,192

Cash and bank balances disposed of (63)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the Hiat Investment Disposal

100,129

Disposal of Shanghai China Garden

On 17 November 2015, the Group and an independent
third party (the “Shanghai China Garden Purchaser”), enfered
info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Shanghai China Garden Purchaser acquired the entire equity
interest in Shanghai China Garden at a consideration of
RMB318,527,000 (equivalent to HK$375,767,000) [the
"Shanghai China Garden Disposal’]. The Shanghai China
1 February 2016. Shanghai
China Garden was principally engaged in property leasing

Garden Disposal was completed on

and management business in Shanghai and was the registered
owner of the residential properties known as “China Garden” in

Shanghai.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a cash consideration
of RMB141,750,000 (equivalent to HK$164,218,000) was
received. A consideration of RMB145,877,000 [equivalent to
HK$174,571,000) was received subsequent to the end of the
reporting period. According to
agreement, the remaining consideration of RMB30,900,000
(equivalent to HK$36,978,000) will be seftled within five
business days after the Group provides the Shanghai China

the terms of the sale and purchase

Garden Purchaser with a copy of the documentary evidence
showing that the Group has paid the fax and duty fo the PRC
authority in respect of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal.
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(6]  Disposal of Shanghai China Garden (Contd)

Nef assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Inventories
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables, deposits received and
receipt in advance
Deferred fax liabilities

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Other receivables

Total consideration

—E-RE

2016

Hist FET
Notes HK$000

13 48
14 353,910
9

95

14,265

(3,137)

(7,045)
29 (74,606)

283,539

(22,629)
114,857

375,767

164,218
211,549

375,767
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39. HEMBEAR (&) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
(b) HELEEEE) (b)  Disposal of Shanghai China Garden (Contd)
BE_Z-X"¥=A=t+—HLt An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
FE - PEERHEZRERE respect of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal during the year
RBREBEFRAZDTIT ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:
ZE-RE
2016
FET
HK$000
HeRE Cash consideration 164,218
BEHER S RRITAR Cash and bank balances disposed of (14,265)
LBEERECRER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
ZRRSBEEFRA of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal 149,953
ERLEBERNECE—TH Further details of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal were
B #RARARHAR=2—1 disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 November

Ft—AttHzZRE - 2015.
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39. HEMBEAR (&) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(c) HiE Tremend Yield Limited (c] Disposal of Tremend Yield Limifted
RZZE—ONF+=-A+—H ' & On 11 December 2014, TPDIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
ATZEQWE@ AR AU ER] Company, entered info a disposal agreement to dispose of all
V-BEHERE  MSLTELE of its equity interest in Tremend Yield Limited and the rights and
H M Tremend Yield Limited 2 & benefits in the inferestfree shareholder's loan of HK$6,404,000
#B P # K Tremend Yield Limited owing by Tremend Yield Limited to TPDIL, at a cash consideration
ERFAMEZEREBRRER of HK$21,875,000, to Mr. Fung (the “Tremend Yield Disposal”).
6,404,0007 7T 2 #E M K M & - The Tremend Yield Disposal was completed on 19 December
R & 8 /21,875,000% T 2014. Tremend Yield Limited was a property investment company
([Tremend Yield tH%& 1) © Tremend whose main asset was a shop in Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon for
Yied HER ZFE—-—HE+ = commercial use.

A+ 1B 5 &K ° Tremend Yield
limted Z— Y EKRE T £
TEBEEANNNERNABES

Ei}e L

—T-1F
2015
Wit FET
Notes HK$ 000

HEZEERE Net assefs disposed of:
REMZ Investment property 14 22,530
Hka Deposits 1
RITHETF Bank balances 279
FEET IR Accruals (24)
HipEMNFIEREWET & Other payables and deposits received (167)
FERBIR Tax payable (93)
ERETIEER Deferred tax liability 29 [560)
REFEEZEHK loan from the Group (6,404)
15,562
BEZRELREEZER Loan from the Group assigned 6,404
HE—FENBRRZER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary Q1)
21,875
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39. HEMBRE(E)

(c)

(d)

HE Tremend Yield Limited
(%)

PANLVES S
ReARE

HE-_ZT—RF=A=+—H81It
FE > Tremend Yield HEZEE S K
ZRBEBERFRAZDITAOT

BeHE
DHERTER

Tremend Yield HEZ R & &
ZRFLBEEHFRA

A #Tremend Yield £ & 7 # —
FEHE HENAQATRHA-T
—E+-A+—HZRE -

HERFERBRA A

RZZF—ME+=ZA+—H" ' K
NAIZEEMBRARRARESR
RAR(IRARED N —EE
EHE RBELTEHEERNRS
ITERBERAR(HZIIER
Blz2dBREERRREIRER
BHERARAREZ L ERRER
6,433,0008 7T 2 #EF Ko F 2%
REREAES, 7940008 ([ ZF
ATRBRBLEE] - RALERR
BHER-Z—NF+=A+Ah
El%ﬁﬁi o RATRRERENEB
RAFENSRERSIER
% o BRERA TR N ETHK
& BEREE %HZ%%L 339
RAEE —fHEE

[ ]
R B AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—X~¥=A=1+—8H

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(c)  Disposal of Tremend Yield Limited (Contd]

—T-REF
2015
FET
HK$000
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 21,875

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the Tremend Yield Disposal during the year ended 31
March 2015 is as follows:

—ZT-hF

2015

T/ET

HK$'000

Cash consideration 21,875

Bank balances disposed of (279)
ef inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the Tremend Yield Disposal 21,596

Further details of the Tremend Yield Disposal were disclosed in
the Company's announcement dated 11 December 2014

(d)  Disposal of Tysan Engineering Company Limited

On 11 December 2014, Tysan Construction Company Limited
("TCCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement to dispose of all of its equity inferest in
Tysan Engineering Company limited (“TECL’) and the rights and
benefits in the interestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$6,433,000
owing by TECL to TCCL, at a cash consideration of
HK$5,794,000, to Mr. Fung (the “Tysan Engineering Disposal’).
The Tysan Engineering Disposal was completed on 19 December
2014. TECL and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of E&M engineering services. Immediately affer
the completion of the Tysan Engineering Disposal, TECL, which
is confrolled by Mr. Fung, became a related company of the
Group.
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39. HEMBAR(E) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(d) HERFEZEERLA(E) (d) Disposal of Tysan Engineering Company Limited (Cont'd)
—Z—h%F
2015
FET
HK$ 000
BHEEERE Net assefs disposed of:
REEBEHNTIRZRAR Amounts due from customers for contract works 6,857
FEWE 5 8RN Trade receivables 4,619
BRI - 7] REMEWTIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 90
RITETT Bank balances 1,534
T E SR R FERTHUIR Trade payables and accruals (2,514)
H fth 5008 Other payables (162)
REFEBENIR A Amounts due to customers for contract works (748)
I ERITEE Interestbearing bank borrowing (400)
REAEEZER loan from the Group (6,433)
RE NI IEERAR R 2 B Loan from a non-controlling shareholder (2,757)
FEIERR AR R A R Non-controlling interests (26)
60
EEFREAREEZEH Loan from the Group assigned 6,433
HEMBARZER loss on disposal of subsidiaries (699)
5,794
TSR HZA - Satisfied by:
BeRE Cash consideration 5,794
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39. HEMBEAR (&) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
(d) HEHZFEZEEFRLA(E) (d)  Disposal of Tysan Engineering Company Limited (Contd)
BE_ZT—RF=-A=1T—HILHF An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
B RAIRBRBHEZHE K respect of the Tysan Engineering Disposal during the year ended
FRBLEBFRAZONWT 31 March 2015 is as follows:
i =
2015
TET
HK$ 000
HeRE Cash consideration 5,794
BHERITER Bank balances disposed of (1,534)
FAIRRBLEZHER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
ZRRSBEEFRA in respect of the Tysan Engineering Disposal 4,260
EREATREREEEZE—F Further details of the Tysan Engineering Disposal were disclosed
FE BERARABAHR-TE in the Company's announcement dated 11 December 2014.

—ME+-—At+—BziEe
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40. REHE D 2EMITA 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBEHR  SHEERTIAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
D as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
SEEE Financial assets
E0E “F-0f
2016 2015
RATHE
AR
tREE-
KFRE
Financicl
assels  AMHHE AiE
otfoirvale  SRERE THEE
6 through ~~ Availoble- E¥R  Awloble
BUGE  profitor forsale BlGR forsale
loonsand ~ loss-held ~finoncial @  loonsond  finonciol et
receivables  for trading assels Tolal  receivables asses Tolal

Fiér FEr FiEr TiEn TAT TET TET
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  AKSO0  AKSOOD  AKSO00

A ERE Availableforsale investment - - 1,197 1,197 = 1249 1,249
fTEERIA Derivative financil instrument - 8,533 - 8,533 = = =
EUE S5 RERRES  Tode ond refention receivables 727,243 - - 70243 1016641 - 1,016,641
HihENER Other receivables 231977 - - 1977 19,941 = 19,941
THER Time deposits 1,303,589 - - 1303589 746432 - 746432
XBsRE Resticted cash - - - - 24,000 - 24,000
ReREOER Cash ond bank balances 502,830 - - 502830 541,004 - 541,004

2,765,639 8,533 1197 2775369 2,348,078 1249 2,349,327
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd)

Financial liabilities
—E-RE ZE—AF
2016 2015
BESEAA REHEAAKR
1) 5a 1l -
TRAE TRAE
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised  at amortised
cost cost
FET THET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Trade and retention payables 385,134 484,494
Other payables 21,325 10,625
Interestbearing bank borrowings 856,946 367,899
1,263,405 863,018
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4. ERMTREZRAFESREE 41. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEEE-FAFMAGETRZE The Group entered info a derivative financial instrument with a financial
MBI BTSSR TIA - %014 institution with an AAA credit rating. The derivative financial insfrument
TRIEAARNERES - RRARER which is a cross currency swap, was measured using valuation
8% BB E RN 2 G techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using present
ERITETE - ZFRABAZEAM G value calculations. The model incorporates various market observable
BRWAYE  BREDEHERNE inputs including the expected forward rate or price, volatility and interest
18 RBE RN R AR - INEK IR rafe curves. The carrying amount of the cross currency swap is the same
ZEREERE A FEMR - as its fair value.

Tﬁ'inéﬁﬁﬂﬁg EerITAZATE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
ATEEMARE Group's financial insfruments:
RIBE-ARERZZE-AFZA=1- Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2016 and 2015:

ARATEI AR |

“E0E il
2016 2015
AFEEER RTEERR
Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using
i N EN i EA £
e 6% TUEE [k gE  AIER
(#18) B AEE BARE (£1B) BAE BAYE
Quoled  ($2B)  (%3B) Quoied  (£2B)  (£3E)
price  Significant  Significant pice  Signficant  Significant
inacfive  observable - unobservable inaclive  observable  undbsenvable
markefs inputs inpufs B mates inpus inpus ot
level 1) (level2)  (level 3] Toll  flevel 1] flevel2)  [level 3) Totdl

Fér TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TEr TER
HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS 00D

fTEERIE Derivative financial instument - 8,533 - 8,533 = = = =
RZZE-—RF=ZA=+—0 " 5B The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
EAMEAFETezeBAaE (= as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

—hE )

FR - FIERF2E AL EFEFA During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
FEFHESR TESREENER between level 1 and level 2 and no fransfers info or out of Level 3 for
BEEBEASELEIE(ZE—RF: both financial assets and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

&) o
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—X~¥=A=1+—8H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, trade and refention and other receivables,
frade and refention and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
fo ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in a fimely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances,
fime deposits, and frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned by
international creditrating agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atfributable fo its frade and refention
and other receivables. The management of the Group monitors each
individual frade debt on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo
bad debs is not significant. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with the exposure spreading over a large number of
counterparties and customers. Further quantitative dafa in respect of the
Group's exposure to credif risk arising from frade and refention and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 fo the financial
statements.
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2. IEBERERERBEKRE)

TET]

AEEmEEG 2 FIREEHE MR E R mR
BIRTIEEEL - FEEEEARER
Ha MR By o NER[E B AL N R
B - BEML - AREEEESEA
R P E b 2 M R B R 0 75 B 8 7 R B
RS2 BB DM KR E LR ©

TRIRERA R R RS TE S
RT - AEEZBHAERI(EBET
BIEE V8 RAEE s Rty
BB (AR 8N UHE LR AR
B Gl -

ZE-RE 2016
RITEK
—E—FF 2015
RITEN

o TEREREEN

SME [ B

AEETZRFERTEAMEEE
% ERHBARXHHIUBTRARES
B AEE AKREZABRITEEA
FBTLAHE

EREEFEERASEMEY c EBE
% WHERBEERE BRI EIINE
a4 o

B
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Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
fo ifs interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group fo interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors the Group's interest rate exposure and considers
enfering info interest rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo interest rate
fluctuations should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rafe
borrowings| and the Group's equity [before any impact on tax).

BRBLA %R
&,/ i)
FIZE Increase/
Increase (decrease)  REZFA *
in interest in profit Decrease
rate  before tax in equity*
TET TIET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
100 @& 2 (8,585) -
100
basis points
1001EE 2, (3,686 -
100
basis points

*

Excluding refained profits

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of its transactions sefiled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.
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42. BBEREEBFERBEK(E) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

BB LA Liquidity risk
AEEZARREAMBARTEEER The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
BREDEHEEE M2 BRFTE - K of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
SETHRAEEIZESION - BRA Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
RSB E R E M 5 EIE o adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.
BIBEATARBIRRN - ATEIIARE The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
BRRESRAZERAERHA the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:
ZE-RF
2016
1218 A AR 1255 SENE
REREE Less than o5 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

FET FEn FiEr FEn FEn
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ERESEFNREMNRES  Trade and refenfion payables - 385,134 - - 385,134
Eft IR Other payables - 21,325 - - 21,325
ST e > Interestbearing bank
borrowings* 6,100 193,274 599,410 59,669 858,453
AEORBEMMBAR Guarantees in respect
{2 iR of performance bonds
in relation 1o subsidiaries 195,469 - - - 195,469

201,569 599,733 599,410 59,669 1,460,381
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42. MBEBEEEERBEKE) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

MEELTERE ()

EffEFEHRENRES
Eft AR
fit SR TfEE >

REOREEAMEAT
frihi 2 iR

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

—E-nfF
2015
12{RAR 1555 SENE
RRREE less thon T105 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Trade and refenfion payables = 484,494 = - 484,494
Other payables = 10,625 5 = 10,625
Inferestbearing bank

borrowings* 33,940 109,823 161,110 63,737 368,610

Guarantees in respect
of performance bonds
in relation fo subsidiaries 416,775 = = = 416,775

450,715 604,942 161,110 63,737 1,280,504

H R-ZFE—RER-_ZE—FRF=H * Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
=t+—B WERTEEeEIAR HK$6,100,000 and HK$33,940,000 as at 31 March 2016 and
BRIB IS T E A E (&R 2015, respectively, which contain a repayment on demand clause
PR B ERER 2 RITERDRA giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and
6,100,000 7% 7t % 33,940,000 7T - therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
Hit, - LB BRI E - Z5e classified as on demand.

BEDPREERENEE -
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BB AR (&)

BERA LRRERERE  EES
HEAERTETHIER 12EARNEH
S BREABZEFRTETRERR
REGEREIMEER - RIEHFR
HEREZRETIIRE  AEERY R
REREZBZMBRR AREETE
RRHL BN TEENSZHRAKES
E—RERREER - RRFITER 2 &
FRZB-RE=ZA=1t—RH " I
FHR12MEAARER 197,114,000
B T(Z T — 1% :137,663,000%8
) R—EL5(BRERMF)E
601,670,000 T(ZE — A F:
167,210,000/ 7T) + ARRAFIA L
JE& 59,669,000 T(Z T —HF -
63,737,000 7T)

BAEE

AEEEAEE 2 T RARAERASE
BARNEFELLEEBZRAEER
BERFEERERASFERBEHA
{ERRE(E -

AEERBCERR EBERHER
RBWIELAZ - BREIARELRE
B AEERERBRINTREZR
B RERREZERKBITHRN - B
BE-T—"F=-A=+—HBEKZ=Z
—AFE=A=T—BLEFEN §BE
AEBZBE  BREREFIEELT
A& -
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—X~¥=A=1+—8H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the
directors do not believe that the bank loans will be called in their
entirety within 12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will
be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
respective agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the
financial position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of
events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank
loans, the maturity ferms at 31 March 2016 are HK$197,114,000
(2015: HK$137,663,000) payable in less than 12 months;
HK$601,670,000 (2015: HK$167,210,000) payable in one to
five years, inclusive; and HK$59,669,000 (2015: HK$63,737,000)

payable over five years.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are fo
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order o support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages ifs capital structure and makes adjustments fo
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2015.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes frade
and refention payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes fotal equity
of the Group. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

—E-RE —ZE—AF

2016 2015

FET THT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

ENESRSNEMNRES Trade and retention payables 385,134 484,494
H fth e 5008 Other payables 21,325 10,625
M ERITREE Interestbearing bank borrowings 856,946 367,899
B EHITERR less: Time deposits (1,303,589)  (746,432)
XRHHE Restricted cash - (24,000

B RIRTTET Cash and bank balances (502,830)  (541,064]
Be%s Nef cash (543,014) (448,478
o Total equity 2,777,192 2,932,569
EUNERET RS Gearing rafio N/ATER N/ANEA
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(o)

HNA Finance | Co., Ltd. /&
AKREEZITRE#66%

REBBEAE - ANQAIEHNA
Finance | Co., Ud.BEA E M B
ZE-AFHEAT A HNA
Finance | Co., lid. AR &) 2 #2
F& A% 3R Tides Holdings Il Lid. 7] 32
E B & - 1R Ut - HNA Finance
| Co., ld. BiEHHRAEEE R
Tides Holdings Il Lid. 5 fé 4 3t /&)
BEHE577,279, 496 % % 15 (48
ERAQRIREIZEEH=B S
REZETRMHL66%) - BRER
B #) 520615076000 (48
ERE R453% T )([Tides R
51)

Tides X 5 72 E + HNA Finance |
Co., Ud. B BARREEITRG
#166% » Tides Holdings Il Ltd. #
BRNARRIEEITRN A% F
% A # 2% K HNA Finance | Co.,
ltd. K AN A B 2 FERRARER

ARREREBDTEERASE
DR ERERN IR SRR E o
ERREFEEP —HERE
—BAREEHIEEE - REER
RN EIP R R B 2 R BNRS
BEY A T EERLERN B
SRZREHE 2 EE TN
ERARRIBELSGZ BER
T8 o Tides X 5 TER S BE B AR IR 58
Bt &3 449 197,980,000 % 7T
ZBFEFIE - ZHER Tides X 5
SERRBEHERE

BElTidesRH 2 E— 71T &

REERE o
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a] Acquisition of approximately 66% of issued shares of

the Company by HNA Finance I Co., Ltd.

Pursuant fo the Joint Announcement, the Company and HNA
Finance | Co., lid. jointly announced that, on 19 April 2016,
HNA Finance | Co., lid. and Tides Holdings Il ld., the
Company's confrolling shareholder, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant fo which, HNA Finance | Co., lid.
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and Tides Holdings Il Lid.
has conditionally agreed to sell, 577,279,496 shares, which
represent approximately 66% of issued shares of the Company
as af the date of entering info the sale and purchase agreement,
for an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
HK$2,615,076,000 (representing HK$4.53 per share) (the
"Tides Transaction”).

Upon completion of the Tides Transaction, HNA Finance | Co.,
ltd. will hold approximately 66% of the issued shares of the
Company and Tides Holdings Il Lid. will remain inferested in
approximately 9% of the issued shares of the Company, and
HNA Finance | Co., ltd. will become the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

The Company has adopfed an incentive scheme in favour of ifs
executive directors and the Group's senior management. A term
of this incentive scheme is that in the event there is change in
control of the Company, unvested rights in this incentive scheme
will vest immediately and no further grants will be made but an
aggregate payment equal to 4.5% of the value of the Company
will be made to participants in that incentive scheme. The
completion of the Tides Transaction will trigger an aggregate
payment of approximately HK$ 197,980,000 under the incentive
scheme which will be determined at the completion date of the
Tides Transaction.

Further details of the Tides Transaction were disclosed in the Joint
Announcement.
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43. HEBEBH(E)

(b)

WiEFZ R (EE)BRA A
40% R#E

RZZE-—AR"FMATAE > AR
Al HERBRETLEER
& Bl ARARERBRE
BERHEZERMALATHES
A E(FE)A0% g - BRE
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(b)  Acquisition of a 40% equity interest in Tysan Foundation

(Hong Kong) Limited

On 19 April 2016, the Company, Fortunate Pool and Mr.
Fung entered info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant fo
which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase and
Fortunate Pool has condifionally agreed fo sell 40% equity inferest
in TFHK, for an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
HK$836,790,000 (the “Foundation Transaction”). Completion
of the Foundation Transaction is conditional upon the completion
of the Tides Transaction, and will take place in two phases
with phase 1 complefion taking place on the same date as the
complefion of the Tides Transaction and phase 2 completion
taking place within one year after that. Immediately after phase 1
completion, the equity interest in TFHK held by the Company will
increase from 60% to 95% and affer phase 2 completion, TFHK
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Further defails of the Foundation Transaction were disclosed in the
Joint Announcement and the Company's circular dated 23 May
2016. Up fo the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Foundation Transaction has not been completed.
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Amount due from a subsidiary

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Time deposits

Bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Trade payables and accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY

Accrual
Net assefs

EQUITY
Issued capifal
Reserves [note)

Total equity

“E-RE —T—hF

2016 2015
FET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
995,911 1,040,371
78 -

199 138
200,000 —
19,741 9,340
220,013 9,478
= 47,772

3,141 [, 398
229 125

3,370 A0S

216,643 (39,774)
1,212,554 1,000,597
4,387 -
1,208,167 1,000,597

87,466 87,466
1,120,701 913,131

1,208,167 1,000,597
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44, RRBPBARRR(E)

45.

44.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont'd)

st - Note:
ARAZ @R T A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
RN RER BB RERF
Share premium  Contributed Retained st
account surplus profits Total
FET FET TFET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
RZE—NFMA—H At 1 April 2014 563,861 29,950 192,281 786,092
REZ 5 Profit for the year = = 258,239 258,239
FAZEN LR Tofal comprehensive
income for the year — — 258,239 258,239
—Z-HFEEK 2014 final dividend
KORAS 2 REARR 2 declared and paid = = (87,467) (87,467)
—E-RFHHRE 2015 interim dividend = = (43,733) (43,733
RZE—RF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015 and
k=Z—AFMA—H 1 April 2015 563,861 29,950 319,320 913,131
REZ 5 Profit for the year — — 513,703 513,703
FAZEN LR Tofal comprehensive
income for the year - — 513,703 513,703
—E-RFEERK 2015 final dividend
R 2 REIR S declared and paid - - (131,200 (131,200
T RFHRERE 2016 interim dividend - — (174,933) (174,933)
BREZHARS Transfer to contributed surplus (563,861) 563,861 - —
RZZE—R"F=A=1+—H8 At 31 March 2016 = 593,811 526,890 1,120,701

ARBHABRBRERAR A B
A RER-AN-—F25EE
AT A M B AR R A FERH
RBARREHITRD CHEZHE
29,950,000/ 7T ° 4 » RIFA R A
R-E-AF\ALRBTZRRBF
ARELBEBZEIARER  ARAR
- N\AEAZEDEERc R
R 28 563,861,000 7T F AT
o W EE 2 ERFIBRAAL
AEARKRE - RE-N/N\—FBARE
REVE - BETERT » KRR AR
BREHDIRGA B o

B Rk 2 R

EXRR-ZF—NFRAZTLALE
BT BB -
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45.

The contributed surplus of the Company included the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor
amounting to HK$29,950,000. In addition, pursuant fo a special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 7 August 2015, the entire amount of HK$563,861,000 standing
o the credit of share premium account of the Company as af 7 August
2015 was cancelled, and the corresponding balance arising therefrom
was credited fo the contributed surplus account of the Company.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
distributions fo its members out of the contributed surplus under cerfain
circumsfances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 29 June 2016.





